



PROPOSED RULE MAKING

CR-102 (June 2024) (Implements RCW 34.05.320)

Do NOT use for expedited rule making

CODE REVISER USE ONLY

OFFICE OF THE CODE REVISER
STATE OF WASHINGTON
FILED

DATE: September 30, 2025

TIME: 10:00 AM

WSR 25-20-086

Agency: Department of Health – Board of Nursing

☒ Original Notice

☐ Supplemental Notice to WSR

☐ Continuance of WSR

☒ Preproposal Statement of Inquiry was filed as WSR 24-24-011; or

☐ Expedited Rule Making--Proposed notice was filed as WSR ____; or

☐ Proposal is exempt under RCW 34.05.310(4) or 34.05.330(1); or

☐ Proposal is exempt under RCW ____.

Title of rule and other identifying information: Registered nurse (RN) and licensed practical nurse (LPN) licensing and continuing competency rules amending WAC 246-840-015 through 246-840-125 and 246-840-210 through 246-840-260. The Washington State Board of Nursing (board) is proposing amendments and new sections, creating WAC 246-840-033, 246-840-091, and 246-840-092 to clarify and update outdated language, rewrite and reformat existing rules to reflect current best practices, and restructure sections as necessary. This rulemaking is Phase 1 of 4 phases of the board's review of chapter 246-840 WAC conducted in accordance with RCW 43.70.041, which requires the board to formally review its rules at least every five years.

Hearing location(s):

Date:	Time:	Location: (be specific)	Comment:
11/14/2025	1:15 p.m.	<p>Physical location: Department of Health Town Center 2, RM 167 111 Israel Rd SE Tumwater, WA 98501</p> <p>Virtual: Please follow this link to register for the virtual hearing which will give you instructions to either join the meeting on a device, or to call in to the meeting on the phone: https://us02web.zoom.us/join/register/JUhqWpiOTVmV0PzMT4wsTg After registering you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar.</p>	The public hearing will be hybrid. Participants can attend at the physical location or virtually by registering on Zoom.

Date of intended adoption: 11/14/2025 (Note: This is NOT the effective date)

Submit written comments to:

Name Jessilyn Dagum

Address PO Box 47864 Olympia, WA 98504-7864

Email WABONRules@doh.wa.gov

Assistance for persons with disabilities:

Contact Jessilyn Dagum

Phone 360-236-3538

Fax 360-236-4738

Fax 360-236-4738

Other <https://fortress.wa.gov/doh/policyreview>

Beginning (date and time) The date and time of this filing

By (date and time) 10/24/2025 at 11:59 p.m.

TTY 711

Email WABONRules@doh.wa.gov

Other

By (date) 10/24/2025

Purpose of the proposal and its anticipated effects, including any changes in existing rules:

The proposal updates and makes revisions to WAC 246-840-015 through 246-840-125 and 246-840-210 through 246-840-260 to clarify and reflect current best practices for licensure pathways and continuing competency requirements for RNs and LPNs. In addition, it simplifies language, reduces barriers for applicants educated outside the United States, clarifies endorsement pathways for multistate license holders, and incorporates new requirements regarding the National Council Licensing Exam (NCLEX) retake limits.

Reasons supporting proposal:

RCW 43.70.041 requires the board to formally review its rules at least once every five years to simplify, streamline, and improve regulations. This proposal is Phase 1 of the board's comprehensive review of chapter 246-840 WAC. Phase 1 addresses licensing and continuing competency requirements for RNs and LPNs. The proposed amendments of this phase clarify and update outdated language, restructure and reformat sections for usability, and align licensing and continuing competency requirements with current best practices.

The proposal makes amendments that will reduce barriers and improve rule clarity for applicants, licensees, nursing education programs, and employers by:

- Clarifying documentation and English proficiency standards for applicants educated outside the United States.
- Simplifying requirements for nurses seeking multistate licensure or endorsement from other U.S. jurisdictions and Canadian jurisdictions.
- Clearly providing expectations for transcript submission and NCLEX examination attempts.
- Updating terminology throughout the chapter by replacing "commission" with "board."

Statutory authority for adoption: RCW 18.79.010, and 18.79.110

Statute being implemented: RCW 43.70.041

Is rule necessary because of a:

Federal Law?

☐ Yes ☒ No

Federal Court Decision?

☐ Yes ☒ No

State Court Decision?

☐ Yes ☒ No

If yes, CITATION:

Agency comments or recommendations, if any, as to statutory language, implementation, enforcement, and fiscal matters: None

Name of proponent: Washington State Board of Nursing

Type of proponent: ☐ Private. ☐ Public. ☒ Governmental.

Name of agency personnel responsible for:

Name	Office Location	Phone
Drafting: Jessilyn Dagum	111 Israel Road SE, Tumwater, WA 98501	360-236-3538
Implementation: Mary Sue Gorski	111 Israel Road SE, Tumwater, WA 98501	360-236-3538
Enforcement: Alison Bradywood	111 Israel Road SE, Tumwater, WA 98501	360-236-3538

Is a school district fiscal impact statement required under [RCW 28A.305.135](#)?

☐ Yes ☒ No

If yes, insert statement here:

The public may obtain a copy of the school district fiscal impact statement by contacting:

Name

Address

Phone

Fax

TTY

Email

Other

Is a cost-benefit analysis required under [RCW 34.05.328](#)?

☒ Yes: A preliminary cost-benefit analysis may be obtained by contacting:

Name Jessilyn Dagum

Address PO Box 47864, Olympia, WA 98504-7864

Phone 360-236-3538

Fax 360-236-4738

TTY 711

Email WABONRules@doh.wa.gov

Other n/a

☐ No: Please explain:

Regulatory Fairness Act and Small Business Economic Impact Statement

Note: The [Governor's Office for Regulatory Innovation and Assistance \(ORIA\)](#) provides support in completing this part.

(1) Identification of exemptions:

This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, **may be exempt** from requirements of the Regulatory Fairness Act (see [chapter 19.85 RCW](#)). For additional information on exemptions, consult the [exemption guide published by ORIA](#). Please check the box for any applicable exemption(s):

☐ This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under [RCW 19.85.061](#) because this rule making is being adopted solely to conform and/or comply with federal statute or regulations. Please cite the specific federal statute or regulation this rule is being adopted to conform or comply with, and describe the consequences to the state if the rule is not adopted.

Citation and description:

☐ This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt because the agency has completed the pilot rule process defined by [RCW 34.05.313](#) before filing the notice of this proposed rule.

☐ This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under the provisions of [RCW 15.65.570](#)(2) because it was adopted by a referendum.

☒ This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under [RCW 19.85.025](#)(3). Check all that apply:

☐ [RCW 34.05.310](#) (4)(b)

(Internal government operations)

☐ [RCW 34.05.310](#) (4)(c)

(Incorporation by reference)

☒ [RCW 34.05.310](#) (4)(d)

(Correct or clarify language)

☐ [RCW 34.05.310](#) (4)(e)

(Dictated by statute)

☐ [RCW 34.05.310](#) (4)(f)

(Set or adjust fees)

☐ [RCW 34.05.310](#) (4)(g)

((i) Relating to agency hearings; or (ii) process requirements for applying to an agency for a license or permit)

☒ This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under [RCW 19.85.025](#)(4). (Does not affect small businesses).

☐ This rule proposal, or portions of the proposal, is exempt under RCW _____.

Explanation of how the above exemption(s) applies to the proposed rule: The proposed rule amendments to address licensing and continuing competency requirements for registered nurses and licensed practical nurses is demonstrated to not apply to these rules. These changes do not impose requirements, costs, or compliance obligations on small businesses.

(2) Scope of exemptions: Check one.

☒ The rule proposal: Is fully exempt. (*Skip section 3.*) Exemptions identified above apply to all portions of the rule proposal.

☐ The rule proposal: Is partially exempt. (*Complete section 3.*) The exemptions identified above apply to portions of the rule proposal, but less than the entire rule proposal. Provide details here:

☐ The rule proposal: Is not exempt. (*Complete section 3.*) Exemptions are identified above.

(3) Small business economic impact statement: Complete this section if any portion is not exempt.

If any portion of the proposed rule is **not exempt**, does it impose more-than-minor costs (as defined by RCW 19.85.020(2)) on businesses?

☐ No Briefly summarize the agency's minor cost analysis and how the agency determined the proposed rule did not impose more-than-minor costs.

☐ Yes Calculations show the rule proposal likely imposes more-than-minor cost to businesses and a small business economic impact statement is required. Insert the required small business economic impact statement here:

The public may obtain a copy of the small business economic impact statement or the detailed cost calculations by contacting:

Name
Address
Phone
Fax
TTY
Email
Other

Date: September 30, 2025

Name: Alison Bradywood DNP, MN/MPH, RN, NEA-BC

Title: Executive Director, Washington State Board of Nursing

Signature:

A handwritten signature in black ink, appearing to be 'AB', written on a white background.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 17-24-015, filed 11/27/17, effective 1/1/18)

WAC 246-840-015 Requirement to submit demographic data. Collecting and supplying demographic data for the nursing profession in Washington state is essential to answering the fundamental questions on supply, demand, and distribution of the nursing workforce.

(1) Applicants and licensees must complete all demographic data elements and attest to the completion of the data elements as part of their licensure requirements for:

(a) Licensed practical nurse (LPN) as defined under WAC 246-840-010(~~((+22+))~~); or

(b) Registered nurse (RN) as defined under WAC 246-840-010(~~((+33+))~~).

(2) Advanced practice nurses who hold Washington state RN licenses do not have to complete additional demographic data. The demographic data is collected on their Washington state RN license. Advanced practice nurses with an active RN multistate license issued by another state shall follow WAC 246-840-092, concerning submission of demographic data.

(3) The ~~((commission))~~ board shall verify compliance with this section during the continued competency audit process in WAC 246-840-230.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 16-08-042, filed 3/30/16, effective 4/30/16)

WAC 246-840-020 Credentials issued to an LPN, RN, or ARNP in Washington state. The following credentials are issued to nurses in Washington state.

(1) ~~((Active status license for LPN or RN. A))~~ Licensed practical nurse (LPN) license.

(a) An LPN license is issued upon completion of licensure requirements under WAC 246-840-025, 246-840-030, 246-840-033, 246-840-045, 246-840-090, 246-840-091, and 246-840-092. ((The license holder may))

(b) Only persons holding this license have the right to use the title licensed practical nurse ((or registered nurse)) and the use of its abbreviation, LPN ((or RN)).

(c) The license allows practice as an LPN ((or RN)) in the state of Washington.

(2) Registered nurse (RN) license.

(a) An RN license is issued upon completion of licensure requirements under WAC 246-840-025, 246-840-030, 246-840-033, 246-840-045, 246-840-090, 246-840-091, and 246-840-092.

(b) Only persons holding this license have the right to use the title registered nurse and its abbreviation, RN.

(c) The license allows practice as an RN in the state of Washington.

(d) A student who has ((graduated from a basic professional nursing course)) completed an associate degree nursing education program approved by the board or its equivalent and who is pursuing a baccalaureate degree in nursing, an advanced degree in nursing or an ad-

vanced certification in nursing must hold an active Washington RN license before participating in the practice of nursing as required to fulfill the learning objectives in a clinical course.

~~((2))~~ (3) Advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP) license.

(a) An ARNP license ~~((may be))~~ is issued ~~((to an individual who meets the requirements of the commission as contained in WAC 246-840-300 through 246-840-365))~~ upon completion of licensure requirements under WAC 246-840-300 through 246-840-367.

(b) Only persons holding this license have the right to use the title ~~(((")advanced registered nurse practitioner((" or the))~~ and its abbreviation ((("ARNP" or), ARNP. This includes any title or abbreviation which indicates that the individual is ~~((entitled))~~ authorized to practice at an advanced and specialized role as a NP, CNM, CRNA, or CNS.

(c) The license is valid only with a current RN license.

(d) The license allows practice as an ARNP in the state of Washington.

(e) The ARNP's scope of practice is defined by a national certifying body approved by the ~~((commission))~~ board.

RN AND LPN LICENSING

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-04-016, filed 1/22/21, effective 2/22/21)

WAC 246-840-025 Initial licensure ~~((for registered nurses and practical nurses))~~ by examination for RN and LPN~~((Commission))~~ **Board-approved Washington state nursing education program.** ~~((Registered nursing and practical nursing))~~ RN and LPN applicants' educated in a ~~((commission))~~ board-approved Washington state nursing education program and applying for initial licensure ~~((must))~~ by examination shall:

(1) ~~((Successfully complete a commission))~~ Have completed a board-approved Washington state nursing education program. ~~((For applicants from a commission approved registered nurse program who are applying for a practical nurse license:~~

~~(a) Complete all course work required of commission approved practical nurse programs as listed in WAC 246-840-575(2). Required courses not included in the registered nurse program may be accepted if the courses were obtained through a commission approved program.~~

~~(b) Be deemed as capable to safely practice within the scope of practice of a practical nurse by the nurse administrator of the candidate's program.~~

~~(2) Successfully pass the commission approved licensure examination as provided in WAC 246-840-050. Testing may be allowed upon re-~~

~~receipt of a certificate of completion from the administrator of the nursing education program.~~

~~(3) Submit the following documents:~~

~~(a) A completed licensure application with the required fee as defined in WAC 246-840-990)) LPN applicants who have completed part of a board-approved RN education program shall follow WAC 246-840-033.~~

~~((b)) (2) Have an official transcript sent directly from the applicant's nursing education program to the ~~((commission. The transcript must include course names and credits accepted from other programs. Transcripts must be received within ninety days of the applicant's first taking of the examination))~~ board. Transcripts must be received no later than 90 days after the applicant's first attempt at the board-approved licensure examination. The transcript must
~~((show)):~~~~

~~((i)) (a) Include the applicant's dates of enrollment, course names, earned credits, date of graduation, and the credential conferred, if applicable. If credits have been accepted from other programs, the transcript must identify those programs.~~

~~(b) Show that the applicant has graduated from ~~((an))~~ a board-approved nursing education program or that the applicant has successfully completed the prelicensure portion of an approved graduate-entry registered nursing program~~((; or~~~~

~~(ii) That the applicant has completed all course work required in a commission approved practical nurse program as listed in WAC 246-840-575(2)).~~

~~((c) Applicants from a commission approved registered nurse program who are applying for a practical nurse license must also submit an attestation sent from the nurse administrator of the candidate's nursing education program indicating that the applicant is capable to safely practice within the scope of practice of a practical nurse.))~~

~~(3) Pass the board-approved licensure examination as provided in WAC 246-840-050. The board may authorize testing upon receipt of a certificate of completion issued by the nurse administrator of the nursing education program.~~

~~(4) Submit a completed licensure application with the required fee as specified in WAC 246-840-990.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 24-10-063, filed 4/26/24, effective 5/27/24)

WAC 246-840-030 Initial licensure ~~((for registered nurses and practical nurses))~~ by examination for RN and LPN~~((Out-of-state))~~ Traditional nursing education program approved by another ((United States nursing board)) U.S. jurisdiction. ~~((1) Registered nurse and practical nurse))~~ RN and LPN applicants educated in a traditional nursing education program approved by another United States ((nursing board)) (U.S.) jurisdiction and applying for initial licensure by examination shall:

~~((a) Successfully complete)) (1) Have completed a nursing education program in another U.S. ~~((state))~~ jurisdiction, which~~((;~~~~

~~(i) Is approved by the nursing board in that state; and~~

~~(ii) Substantially meets requirements for nursing education approved in Washington state. The board retains authority to evaluate~~

~~and determine the sufficiency of academic preparation for all applicants.~~

~~(b) Successfully pass the board-approved licensure examination as provided in WAC 246-840-050.~~

~~(c) Submit the following documents:~~

~~(i) A completed licensure application with the required fee as defined in WAC 246-840-990.~~

~~(ii)) substantially meets requirements for nursing education approved in Washington state. The board retains authority to evaluate and determine the sufficiency of academic preparation for all applicants. LPN applicants who have completed part of an approved RN nursing education program shall follow WAC 246-840-033.~~

~~(2) Have an official transcript sent directly from the applicant's nursing education program to the board. ((The transcript must include course names and credits accepted from other programs. The transcript must show:~~

~~(A) The applicant has graduated from an approved nursing program or has successfully completed the prelicensure portion of an approved graduate-entry registered nursing program; or~~

~~(B) That the applicant has completed all course work required in a board-approved practical nurse program as listed in WAC 246-840-539.~~

~~(iii) An applicant from a board-approved registered nurse program who is applying for a practical nurse license shall also submit an attestation sent from the nurse administrator of the applicant's nursing education program indicating that the applicant is capable to safely practice within the scope of practice of a practical nurse.~~

~~(2) An applicant from an out-of-state board-approved registered nurse program who is applying for a practical nurse license shall:~~

~~(a) Complete all course work required of board-approved practical nurse programs as listed in WAC 246-840-539. Required courses not included in the registered nurse program may be accepted if the courses were obtained through a board-approved program.~~

~~(b) Be deemed as capable to safely practice within the scope of practice of a practical nurse by the nurse administrator of the applicant's nursing education program.)) Transcripts must be received no later than 90 days after the applicant's first attempt at the board-approved licensure examination.~~

~~The transcript must:~~

~~(a) Include the applicant's dates of enrollment, course names, earned credits, date of graduation, and the credential conferred, if applicable. If credits have been accepted from other programs, the transcript must identify those programs; and~~

~~(b) Show that the applicant has graduated from a nursing education program approved by another U.S. jurisdiction or that the applicant has completed the prelicensure portion of an approved graduate-entry registered nursing program. The nursing education program must substantially meet the requirements of nursing education approved in Washington state at the time of graduation as determined by the board.~~

~~(3) Pass the board-approved licensure examination as provided in WAC 246-840-050.~~

~~(4) Submit a completed licensure application with the required fee as specified in WAC 246-840-990.~~

NEW SECTION

WAC 246-840-033 Applicants who have completed part of an approved RN program applying for LPN licensure. Applicants who have completed part of an approved RN program and are applying for licensure as an LPN shall:

(1) Have completed all course work required of board-approved practical nursing education programs listed in WAC 246-840-539. Required courses not included in the RN program may be accepted if the courses were obtained through a board-approved program. The board retains authority to evaluate and determine the sufficiency of academic preparation for all applicants.

(2) Have completed a board-approved professional vocational relationship (PVR) course.

(3) Have an official transcript sent directly from the applicant's nursing education program to the board. Transcripts must be received no later than 90 days after the applicant's first attempt at the board-approved licensure examination. The transcript must:

(a) Include the applicant's dates of enrollment, course names, earned credits, date of graduation, and the credential conferred, if applicable. If credits have been accepted from other programs, the transcript must identify those programs; and

(b) Show that the applicant has completed all course work required in a board-approved practical nurse program listed in WAC 246-840-539. If the applicant is from a traditional nursing education program approved by another U.S. jurisdiction, the program must substantially meet the requirements of board-approved nursing education in Washington state.

(4) Have an attestation sent from the nurse administrator of the applicant's RN education program indicating that the applicant is capable of safely practicing within the scope of practice of an LPN.

(5) Pass the board-approved licensure examination for LPNs as provided in WAC 246-840-050. If the applicant is from a board-approved Washington state nursing education program, the board may authorize testing upon receipt of a certificate of completion issued by the nurse administrator of the nursing education program.

(6) Submit a completed licensure application with the required fee as specified in WAC 246-840-990.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-04-016, filed 1/22/21, effective 2/22/21)

WAC 246-840-045 Initial licensure for ~~((registered nurses and practical nurses who graduate from an international school of nursing))~~ RN and LPN applicants educated outside U.S. jurisdictions. ~~((1) Registered nurse and practical nurse))~~ RN and LPN applicants educated ~~((in a jurisdiction which is not a member of the National Council of State Boards of Nursing))~~ outside United States (U.S.) jurisdictions and applying for initial licensure ~~((must))~~ shall:

~~((a) Successfully complete a basic))~~ (1) Have completed a nursing education program ((approved in that country)) outside U.S. jurisdictions.

~~((i))~~ (a) The nursing education program must ~~(be equivalent to the minimum standards prevailing for nursing education programs approved by the commission)~~ substantially meet the requirements for nursing education approved in Washington state. The board retains authority to evaluate and determine the sufficiency of academic preparation for all applicants.

~~((ii))~~ (b) Any deficiencies in the nursing education program ~~((theory and clinical practice in medical, psychiatric, obstetric, surgical and pediatric nursing))~~, as described in WAC 246-840-537, 246-840-539, and 246-840-541, may be satisfactorily completed in a ~~(commission)~~ board-approved nursing education program or program created for internationally educated nurses identified in WAC 246-840-549, 246-840-551 or 246-840-552. Documentation demonstrating that any deficiencies have been satisfactorily completed must be submitted directly to the board from the nursing education program.

~~((b))~~ (2) Obtain ~~((an))~~ a transcript evaluation ~~((or certificate))~~ from a ~~(commission)~~ board-approved credential evaluation service verifying that the educational program completed by the applicant ~~((is equivalent to))~~ substantially meets the requirements for nursing education in the state of Washington. The evaluation must include a copy of the applicant's official transcript which must:

(a) Be in English or accompanied by an official English translation;

(b) Include applicant's dates of enrollment, course names, earned credits, date of graduation, and the credential conferred, if applicable. If credits have been accepted from other programs, the transcript must identify those programs;

(c) Document that the nursing education program completed by the applicant substantially meets the requirements for nursing education in Washington state. Course descriptions or syllabi may be required to determine if the education received is substantially equivalent to Washington state standards.

(3) Provide verification to the board directly from the program indicating that the theory and clinical components were taught in English. If the theory and clinical components of the applicant's nursing education program were not taught in English, the applicant must demonstrate English language proficiency by one of the following:

(a) Provide evidence of passing a board-approved English proficiency examination with the minimum passing scores established by the board;

(b) Provide evidence of earning a diploma or degree directly from an educational institution in a U.S. jurisdiction, prior to board approval to take the board-approved licensure examination as described in WAC 246-840-050. The education acquired by the applicant must have been taught in English; or

(c) ~~((Demonstrate English language proficiency by passing a commission approved English proficiency examination at a commission designated standard, or provide evidence directly from the school of earning a high school diploma or college degree from a United States institution prior to commission approval to take the national licensure examination.~~

Individuals from Canada (except for Quebec), United Kingdom, Ireland, Australia, New Zealand, American Samoa, Guam, Northern Mariana Island, and U.S. Virgin Islands will have this requirement waived.

~~((Successfully pass the commission))~~ Provide evidence of completing 1,000 hours of employment as a licensed nurse in another country in which English is the primary language spoken. The 1,000 hours

of employment must be in the same licensed role as the nurse is applying for licensure in Washington state.

(4) Pass the board-approved licensure examination as provided in WAC 246-840-050.

~~((2) Registered nurse and practical nurse applicants must submit the following documents:~~

~~(a) A completed licensure application with the required fee as defined in WAC 246-840-990.~~

~~(b) Official transcript directly from the nursing education program or licensure agency in the country where the applicant was educated and previously licensed.~~

~~(i) Transcript must be in English or accompanied by an official English translation. If the applicant's original documents (education and licensing) are on file in another state or with an approved credential evaluation agency, the applicant may request that the state board or approved credential evaluating agency send copies directly to the commission in lieu of the originals.~~

~~(ii) The transcript must:~~

~~(A) Include the applicant's date of enrollment, date of graduation and credential conferred.~~

~~(B) Describe the course names and credit hours completed.~~

~~(C) Document equivalency to the minimum standards in Washington state. Course descriptions or syllabi may be requested to determine equivalency to Washington state standards.~~

~~(c) Documentation from a commission approved nursing program showing that any deficiency has been satisfactorily completed.~~

~~(d) Documents must show the applicant has passed a commission approved English proficiency examination or the requirement is waived as identified in subsection (1) of this section.)) If the applicant passed the examination in a licensing jurisdiction outside the U.S., the applicant shall provide verification of having passed the examination directly from that jurisdiction to the board.~~

(5) Submit a completed licensure application with the required fee as specified in WAC 246-840-990.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-11-019, filed 5/12/08, effective 6/12/08)

WAC 246-840-050 Licensing examination. (1) The current series of the National Council of the State Boards of Nursing Registered Nurse (NCSBN) Registered Nurse or Practical Nurse Licensing Examination (NCLEX-RN® or NCLEX-PN®) ~~((shall be))~~ is the official examinations for nurse licensure.

(2) In order to be licensed in this state, all nurse applicants shall take and pass the National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX-RN® or NCLEX-PN®).

(3) Only applicants who complete the education, experience, and application requirements of WAC 246-840-025, 246-840-030, ~~((246-840-035))~~ 246-840-033, or 246-840-045 will be eligible for the relevant examination.

(4) The ~~((commission))~~ board will notify applicants who ~~((have filed the required application documents and met all qualifications of their eligibility))~~ are eligible to take the relevant examination.

(5) Applicants must ~~((file an examination application))~~ register directly ~~((to))~~ with the testing service~~((, along with the testing service's))~~ and pay any required fees.

(6) The executive director of the ~~((commission))~~ board shall negotiate with the National Council of State Boards of Nursing (NCSBN) for the use of the NCLEX®.

(7) The relevant examination shall be administered in ~~((accord))~~ accordance with the NCSBN security measures and contract. All appeals of examination procedures and results shall be managed in ~~((accord))~~ accordance with policies in the NCSBN contract.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 08-11-019, filed 5/12/08, effective 6/12/08)

WAC 246-840-060 Results and retaking of examination. (1) ~~((The commission will notify applicants of the examination results by mail.~~

~~(2) Applicants who pass receive a license to practice as a practical nurse or registered nurse from the commission provided all other requirements are met.~~

~~(3))~~ The board will issue a license to LPN and RN applicants who pass the relevant board-approved licensure examination described in WAC 246-840-050, provided all other requirements are met.

(2) The board will notify applicants who fail the examination ~~((will receive a letter of notification from the commission,))~~ including examination results and information on retaking the examination. The applicant may retake the examination no sooner than ~~((forty-five))~~ 45 days following the date of the last ~~((exam taken))~~ examination attempt.

(3) An applicant who fails to pass the examination after four attempts will not be eligible to retest until the applicant provides evidence of completing a relevant board-approved National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX) prep course.

(4) The applicant's examination results will be maintained in ~~((his/her))~~ their application file with the department ~~((of health)).~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 24-10-063, filed 4/26/24, effective 5/27/24)

WAC 246-840-090 Licensure ~~((for nurses))~~ by interstate endorsement for applicants educated in a U.S. jurisdiction. Registered nurse (RN) and licensed practical nurse (LPN) applicants ~~((for))~~ educated in a United States (U.S.) jurisdiction and applying for licensure by interstate endorsement ~~((may be issued a license without examination provided the applicant meets the following requirements))~~ shall:

(1) ~~((The applicant))~~ Have graduated and hold~~((s))~~ a degree from~~((÷~~

~~((a) A state board-approved program))~~ a nursing education program approved by a board of nursing or regulatory authority in a U.S. jurisdiction, preparing candidates for licensure as a nurse~~((, which)).~~ The nursing education program must substantially meet~~((s))~~ require-

ments for nursing education approved in Washington state at the time of graduation, as determined by the board(~~(; or~~

~~(b) A nursing program that is equivalent to board-approved nursing education in Washington state at the time of graduation as determined by the board)). The board retains authority to evaluate and determine the sufficiency of academic preparation for all applicants.~~

~~(a) Applicants educated outside U.S. jurisdictions shall follow WAC 246-840-091.~~

~~(b) RN applicants who graduated from a nontraditional nursing education program without a clinical component must provide evidence of 1,000 hours of practice as an RN in a U.S. jurisdiction without regulatory discipline.~~

~~(2) ((The applicant)) Holds one of the following:~~

~~(a) A current active nursing license in another ((state or territory, or holds)) U.S. jurisdiction.~~

~~(b) An inactive or expired license in another ((state or territory)) U.S. jurisdiction and successfully completes a board-approved refresher course.~~

~~((a)) (i) An applicant whose license ((was)) is inactive or expired ((must)) in another U.S. jurisdiction may be issued a limited education authorization by the board to enroll in the clinical portion of the refresher course.~~

~~((b)) (ii) The limited education authorization is valid only while working under the direct supervision of a preceptor and is not valid for employment as a ((registered)) nurse.~~

~~(c) An inactive or expired license in another U.S. jurisdiction, and an active license in a Canadian jurisdiction where the applicant has been actively practicing within the last three years.~~

~~The applicant submitted verification of an active license and active nursing practice in a Canadian jurisdiction within the last three years.~~

~~(3) ((The applicant was originally licensed to practice as a nurse in another state or territory after passing the National Council Licensure Examination (NCLEX)).~~

~~(4) An applicant graduating from a nursing program outside the U.S. shall demonstrate English proficiency by:~~

~~(a) Passing a board-approved English proficiency test if the nursing education is not in one of the following countries: Canada (except for Quebec), United Kingdom, Ireland, Australia, New Zealand, American Samoa, Guam, Northern Mariana Islands, and U.S. Virgin Islands; or~~

~~(b) Completing 1,000 hours of employment as a licensed nurse in another state. The 1,000 hours of employment must be in the same licensed role as the nurse is applying for licensure in Washington state. Proof of employment must be submitted to the board; or~~

~~(c) Providing evidence directly from the program of earning a high school diploma or college degree from a United States institution.~~

~~(5) For RNs: If the applicant is a graduate of a nontraditional nursing education program and:~~

~~(a) Was licensed as a practical/vocational nurse prior to licensure as a registered nurse, the applicant shall meet the requirements defined in WAC 246-840-048.~~

~~(b) Was not licensed as a practical/vocational nurse prior to licensure as a registered nurse, the applicant shall submit evidence of at least 1,000 hours of practice as a registered nurse without discipline of the registered nurse license by any other state or territory.~~

~~(6) All applicants must submit the following documents:~~

~~(a) A completed licensure application with the required fee as defined in WAC 246-840-990.~~

~~(b)) Provide verification that the applicant was originally licensed to practice as a nurse in another U.S. jurisdiction after passing the relevant board-approved licensure examination as described in WAC 246-840-050.~~

~~(4) Have an official transcript sent directly from the applicant's nursing education program to the board if the education cannot be verified from the original board of nursing, regulatory authority, or board-approved evaluation ((agency)) service.~~

~~((i)) (a) The transcript must ((contain adequate documentation demonstrating that the applicant graduated from an approved nursing program or successfully completed the prelicensure portion of an approved graduate-entry registered nursing program.~~

~~(ii) The transcripts must include course names and credits accepted from other programs.~~

~~(c) Verification of an original registered or practical nurse license from the state or territory of original licensure. The verification must identify that issuance of the original licensure included passing the NCLEX.~~

~~(d) For an applicant educated outside the United States and in territories or countries not listed in subsection (4)(a) of this section, successful results of a board-approved English proficiency exam, or, evidence of 1,000 hours worked as a nurse.~~

~~(e) For RNs: If the applicant is a graduate of a nontraditional program in nursing and:~~

~~(i) Was licensed as a practical/vocational nurse prior to licensure as a registered nurse, the applicant shall submit the requirements outlined in WAC 246-840-048.~~

~~(ii) Was not licensed as a practical/vocational nurse prior to licensure as a registered nurse, the applicant shall submit documentation of at least 1,000 hours of practice as a registered nurse without discipline of the registered nurse license by any other state or territory.)):~~

~~(i) Include the applicant's dates of enrollment, course names, earned credits, date of graduation, and the credential conferred, if applicable. If credits have been accepted from other programs, the transcript must identify those programs; and~~

~~(ii) Show that the applicant has graduated from a nursing education program or that the applicant has completed the prelicensure portion of an approved graduate-entry registered nursing program. The nursing education program must substantially meet the requirements of board-approved nursing education in Washington state at the time of graduation as determined by the board.~~

~~(b) An education verification, course descriptions, or syllabi may be requested from the applicant's nursing education program and must include clinical hours in specific content areas of direct care and simulation.~~

~~(5) Submit a completed licensure application with the required fee as specified in WAC 246-840-990.~~

NEW SECTION

WAC 246-840-091 Licensure by interstate endorsement for applicants educated outside U.S. jurisdictions. Registered nurse (RN) and licensed practical nurse (LPN) applicants educated outside United States (U.S.) jurisdictions and applying for licensure by interstate endorsement shall:

(1) Have graduated and hold a degree from a nursing education program outside U.S. jurisdictions preparing candidates for licensure as a nurse. The nursing education program must substantially meet requirements for nursing education approved in Washington state at the time of graduation, as determined by the board. The board retains authority to evaluate and determine the sufficiency of academic preparation for all applicants. The board may request a copy of official transcripts and a completed education verification from the applicant's nursing education program.

(2) Hold one of the following:

(a) A current active nursing license in another U.S. jurisdiction.

(b) An inactive or expired license in another U.S. jurisdiction and successfully complete a board-approved refresher course.

(i) An applicant whose license is inactive or expired in another U.S. jurisdiction may be issued a limited education authorization by the board to enroll in the clinical portion of the refresher course.

(ii) The limited education authorization is valid only while working under the direct supervision of a preceptor and is not valid for employment as a nurse.

(c) An inactive or expired license in another U.S. jurisdiction, and an active license in a Canadian jurisdiction, where the applicant has been actively practicing within the last three years. The applicant must submit verification of an active license and active nursing practice in a Canadian jurisdiction within the last three years.

(3) Provide verification that the applicant was originally licensed to practice as a nurse in another U.S. jurisdiction after passing the relevant board-approved licensure examination as described in WAC 246-840-050.

(4) Have an official transcript sent directly from the applicant's nursing education program to the board if the education cannot be verified from the original board of nursing, regulatory authority, or board-approved evaluation service.

(a) The transcript must:

(i) Be in English or accompanied by an official English translation;

(ii) Include the applicant's dates of enrollment, course names, earned credits, date of graduation, and the credential conferred, if applicable. If credits have been accepted from other programs, the transcript must identify those programs; and

(iii) Document that the applicant has graduated from a nursing education program or that the applicant has completed the prelicensure portion of an approved graduate-entry registered nursing program. The nursing education program must substantially meet the requirements of board-approved nursing education in Washington state at the time of graduation as determined by the board.

(b) An education verification, course descriptions, or syllabi may be requested from the applicant's nursing education program and

must include clinical hours in specific content areas of direct care and simulation.

(5) Provide verification to the board directly from the program indicating that the theory and clinical components were taught in English. If the theory and clinical components of the applicant's nursing education program were not taught in English, the applicant must demonstrate English proficiency by one of the following:

(a) Provide evidence of passing a board-approved English proficiency examination with the minimum scores established by the board;

(b) Provide evidence of earning a diploma or degree directly from an educational institution in a U.S. jurisdiction prior to board approval to take the board-approved licensure examination as described in WAC 246-840-050. The education acquired by the applicant must have been taught in English; or

(c) Provide evidence of completing 1,000 hours of employment as a licensed nurse in another country in which English is the primary language spoken. The 1,000 hours of employment must be in the same licensed role as the nurse is applying for licensure in Washington state.

(6) Complete and submit a licensure application with the required fee as specified in WAC 246-840-990.

NEW SECTION

WAC 246-840-092 Multistate licensure. (1) Applicants applying for a multistate license under the Enhanced Nurse Licensure Compact (eNLC) shall meet all requirements outlined in this chapter and RCW 18.80.020(3).

(2) Individuals that hold a multistate nurse license issued by another compact jurisdiction outside of Washington and employed by certain entities shall complete specific requirements as a condition of employment identified in subsection (3) of this section. These entities include:

(a) Hospitals as described in RCW 70.41.540;

(b) Private establishments as described in RCW 71.12.740;

(c) Ambulatory surgical facilities as described in RCW 70.230.220;

(d) Nursing homes as described in RCW 18.51.590;

(e) Assisted living facilities as described in RCW 18.20.530;

(f) Hospice care centers as described in RCW 70.127.300;

(g) Adult family homes as described in RCW 70.128.310; or

(h) Nursing pools as described in RCW 18.52C.070.

(3) As a condition of employment, individuals that hold a multistate nurse license issued by another compact jurisdiction and employed by an entity listed in subsection (2) of this section, shall:

(a) Complete any demographic data surveys required by the board as described in WAC 246-840-015; and

(b) Complete the one-time, six-hour training in suicide assessment, treatment, and management required by RCW 43.70.442 (5)(a).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 24-03-055, filed 1/11/24, effective 2/11/24)

WAC 246-840-095 Temporary practice permits. The ~~((Washington state board of nursing ()))~~board~~(()))~~ conducts background checks on applicants to assure safe patient care. Completion of a fingerprint-based national background check may cause a delay in licensing.

(1) The board may issue a temporary practice permit to an applicant who ~~((holds an unrestricted, active license in another state which has substantially equivalent licensing standards to those in Washington))~~ has met all requirements for licensure under this chapter, with the exception of the fingerprint-based national background check. The applicant must not be subject to denial of a license or issuance of a conditional or restricted license.

(2) A temporary practice permit serves as a license to practice nursing during the time period specified on the permit.

(3) A temporary practice permit expires when:

(a) A license is granted;

(b) A notice of decision on application is ~~((mailed))~~ sent to the applicant, unless the notice of decision on application specifically extends the duration of the temporary practice permit; or

(c) Sixty days after the temporary practice permit is issued, or 180 days for military spouse applicants.

(d) If, at the expiration of the original temporary practice permit, the department ~~((of health (department)))~~ has not received information from the fingerprint-based national background check, the board may renew the temporary practice permit for an additional 30 days.

(4) To receive a temporary practice permit, the applicant ~~((must))~~ shall:

(a) Submit to the board an application and the necessary application fee(s) for the license.

(b) Meet all other requirements and qualifications for the license, except for the results from a fingerprint-based national background check, if required.

~~((c) Provide to the board verification of holding an unrestricted nursing license from another state that has substantially equivalent licensing standards to those in Washington.))~~

(5) The applicant shall initiate the fingerprint-based national background check process with the department within 30 days of applying to the board, or the permanent license application may be closed as incomplete. The temporary practice permit shall not be extended in accordance with subsection (3)(c) of this section unless the applicant's fingerprints have been received by the department and a fingerprint-based national background check is in process.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 97-13-100, filed 6/18/97, effective 7/19/97)

WAC 246-840-105 Brief adjudicative proceedings—Denials based on failure to meet education, experience, or examination prerequisites for licensure. The ~~((commission))~~ board adopts RCW 34.05.482 ~~((and 34.05.485))~~ through 34.05.494 for adjudicative proceedings requested

by applicants, who are denied a license under chapter 18.79 RCW or chapter 246-840 WAC for failure to meet the education, experience, or examination prerequisites for licensure. The sole issue at the adjudicative proceeding shall be whether the applicant meets the education, experience, and examination prerequisites for the issuance of a license.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-11-032, filed 5/12/21, effective 6/12/21)

WAC 246-840-111 Expired license for RN or LPN. An RN or LPN licensed under this chapter with an expired license as defined in WAC 246-12-010 may return their license to an active status. During the time the license is expired, the nurse cannot practice in Washington state.

(1) If the license has been expired for three years or less, ~~((the practitioner must))~~ the nurse shall meet the requirements in WAC ~~((246-12-020 through 246-12-051))~~ 246-12-040 to return to active status.

(2) If the license has been expired for more than three years and the ~~((practitioner))~~ nurse has been in active practice in another United States (U.S.) or Canadian jurisdiction, the ~~((practitioner must))~~ nurse shall:

(a) Submit verification of active practice from any other ~~((United States))~~ U.S. or Canadian jurisdiction;

(b) Meet the requirements in WAC ~~((246-12-020 through 246-12-051))~~ 246-12-040.

(3) If the license has been expired for more than three years and the ~~((practitioner))~~ nurse has not been in active practice in another ~~((United States))~~ U.S. or Canadian jurisdiction, the ~~((practitioner must))~~ nurse shall:

(a) Successfully complete a ~~((commission))~~ board-approved refresher course. The ~~((practitioner will))~~ nurse may be issued a limited educational ~~((license))~~ authorization to enroll in the refresher course. The limited educational ~~((license))~~ authorization is valid only while working under the direct supervision of a preceptor and is not valid for employment as a ~~((licensed practical or registered))~~ nurse;

(b) Meet the requirements in WAC ~~((246-12-020 through 246-12-051))~~ 246-12-040.

(4) Fees are specified in WAC 246-840-990.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-11-032, filed 5/12/21, effective 6/12/21)

WAC 246-840-120 Inactive ~~((credential))~~ license for RN or LPN. An RN or LPN licensed under this chapter may place their license in an "inactive status" as defined in WAC 246-12-010.

(1) ~~((A practitioner may obtain an inactive credential. Refer to the requirements in WAC 246-12-090 through 246-12-110.~~

~~((2) Practitioners with an inactive credential))~~ To place a license in inactive status, the nurse shall comply with the requirements in WAC 246-12-090.

(2) An inactive license must be renewed on or before the nurse's birthday. To renew an inactive license, the nurse shall comply with the requirements in WAC 246-12-100.

(3) To return to active status:

(a) If the license is inactive for three years or less ((who wish to return to active status must)), the nurse shall meet the requirements in WAC 246-12-090 through 246-12-110.

~~((3) Practitioners with an inactive credential))~~ (b) If the license is inactive for more than three years((, who have)) and the nurse has been in active practice in another ((United States)) U.S. or Canadian jurisdiction, ((and wish to return to active status must)) the nurse shall:

((a)) (i) Submit verification of active practice from any other ((United States)) U.S. or Canadian jurisdiction;

((b)) (ii) Meet the requirements in WAC 246-12-090 through 246-12-110.

~~((4) Practitioners with an inactive credential))~~ (c) If the license is inactive for more than three years((, who have)) and the nurse has not been in active practice in another ((United States)) U.S. or Canadian jurisdiction, ((and wish to return to active status must)) the nurse shall:

((a)) (i) Successfully complete a ((commission)) board-approved refresher course. The ((practitioner)) nurse will be issued a limited educational ((license)) authorization to enroll in the refresher course. The limited educational ((license)) authorization is valid only while working under the direct supervision of a preceptor and is not valid for employment as a ((licensed practical or registered)) nurse;

((b)) (ii) Meet the requirements in WAC 246-12-090 through 246-12-110.

(4) Fees are specified in WAC 246-840-990.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-11-032, filed 5/12/21, effective 6/12/21)

WAC 246-840-125 Retired active ((credential)) license for RN or LPN. (1) A ~~((registered or licensed practical nurse))~~ RN or LPN may place their ~~((credential))~~ license in "retired active" status as defined in WAC 246-12-010 by meeting the requirements of this section.

(2) ~~((A registered or licensed practical nurse))~~ An RN or LPN who holds a retired active ~~((credential))~~ license may only practice in intermittent or emergent circumstances.

(a) Intermittent means the ~~((registered or licensed practical nurse))~~ RN or LPN will practice no more than ~~((ninety))~~ 90 days a year.

(b) Emergent means the ~~((registered or licensed practical nurse))~~ RN or LPN will practice only in emergency circumstances such as earthquakes, floods, times of declared war, or other states of emergency.

(3) To obtain a retired active ~~((credential a registered or a licensed practical nurse must))~~ license, an RN or LPN shall:

(a) Meet the requirements in WAC 246-12-120.

(b) Pay the appropriate fee as specified in WAC 246-840-990.

(4) To renew a retired active ~~((credential the registered nurse or licensed practical nurse must))~~ license, the RN or LPN shall:

(a) Meet the requirements in WAC 246-12-130. The retired active ~~((credential))~~ license fee is specified in WAC 246-840-990.

(b) Have completed eight hours of continuing nursing education within a ~~((twelve))~~ 12-month period prior to the renewal of licensure in compliance with WAC 246-840-220 (2)(b). Education may include CPR and first aid.

(c) Demonstrate they have practiced at least ~~((twenty-four))~~ 24 hours within a ~~((twelve))~~ 12-month period prior to the renewal of licensure. Practice may be paid or unpaid as a volunteer, but must require nursing knowledge or a nursing license.

(d) Renew their retired active ~~((credential))~~ license every year on their birthday.

(5) To return to active status, the ~~((registered or licensed practical nurse must))~~ RN or LPN shall meet the requirements in WAC 246-12-140. The active renewal fee is specified in WAC 246-840-990.

(6) ~~((A registered or licensed practical nurse))~~ An RN or LPN who holds a retired active ~~((credential))~~ license is subject to a continuing competency audit as outlined in WAC 246-840-220 and 246-840-230.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-11-032, filed 5/12/21, effective 6/12/21)

WAC 246-840-210 Continuing competency definitions. The definitions in this section apply throughout WAC 246-840-200 through 246-840-260 unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

(1) "Active nursing practice" means engagement in paid, unpaid, or volunteer activity performing acts requiring substantial nursing knowledge, judgment, and skills described under RCW 18.79.040, 18.79.050, and 18.79.060. Active nursing practice may include, but is not limited to, working in direct care roles or administrative roles such as an administrator, quality manager, policy officer, ((public health nurse, parish nurse, home health nurse,)) educator, consultant, or regulator((, and investigator or case manager)).

(2) ~~((**"Advanced nursing degree"** means education preparation beyond one's initial education for nurse licensure.~~

~~((3))~~ "Attestation" means the affirmation by signature of the nurse indicating compliance with the standards and terms of the continuing competency requirements.

~~((4))~~ (3) "Compliance audit" means a review of documents to determine whether the nurse has fulfilled the requirements in WAC 246-840-220 through 246-840-260.

~~((5))~~ (4) "Continuing competency" is the ongoing ability of a nurse to maintain, update and demonstrate sufficient knowledge, skills, judgment, and qualifications necessary to practice safely and ethically in a designated role and setting in accordance with the scope of nursing practice. A nurse achieves continuing competency through active practice and continuing nursing education.

~~((6))~~ (5) "Continuing nursing education" refers to systematic professional learning experiences obtained after initial licensure and designed to augment the knowledge, skills, and judgment of nurses and

enrich nurses' contributions to quality health care and the pursuit of professional career goals, related to a nurse's area of professional practice, growth and development.

~~((+7))~~ (6) "Nurse" means a registered nurse ~~((and))~~ or licensed practical nurse.

~~((+8))~~ (7) "Review period" is one full licensing renewal cycle. For purposes of a compliance audit, the review period will be the one year preceding the audit due date.

~~((+9)) "Technical assistance" means guidance provided by commission staff to help the nurse comply with laws and rules.))~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 23-23-166, filed 11/21/23, effective 12/22/23)

WAC 246-840-220 Continuing competency requirements—Active status. (1) Upon license renewal a nurse ~~((must))~~ shall attest on a form provided by the department of health declaring completion of the required active nursing practice hours and continuing nursing education hours.

(2) A nurse ~~((must))~~ shall complete within a 12-month period prior to the renewal of licensure:

(a) A minimum of 96 hours of active nursing practice; and

(b) A minimum of eight hours of continuing nursing education of which at least two hours must be on health equity training, as specified in WAC 246-840-222.

(3) ~~((Nurses must))~~ A nurse shall complete a qualified suicide prevention training as follows:

(a) A registered nurse, except for registered nurses holding an active certified registered nurse anesthetist license, and licensed practical nurses must complete a one-time, six-hour training in suicide assessment, treatment, and management from a qualified suicide prevention training program. The training must be completed by the end of the first full year of ~~((practice))~~ licensure.

(b) A qualified suicide training program must be on the department of health model list, required under RCW 43.70.442, to be accepted.

(c) The hours spent completing a qualified training program in suicide assessment, treatment, and management under this section counts toward continuing competency requirements in subsection (2)(b) of this section.

(4) ~~((Nurses who are))~~ A nurse who is enrolled in, or ~~((have))~~ has completed prerequisite classes for, an advanced nursing education program ~~((are))~~ is exempt from the continuing competency requirements during their current review period.

(5) A nurse providing clinical services through telemedicine shall complete requirements under RCW 43.70.495.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 23-23-166, filed 11/21/23, effective 12/22/23)

WAC 246-840-222 Continuing competency requirements—Health equity continuing education. (1) ~~((Licensed practical nurses and registered))~~ Nurses must complete a minimum of two hours of health equity continuing education every year upon license renewal as described in WAC 246-12-800 through 246-12-830.

(2) ~~((This))~~ The hours spent completing health equity continuing education under this section count toward meeting applicable continuing education requirements for nurse license renewal as described in WAC 246-840-220.

(3) Nurses shall complete a health equity continuing education training that must include:

(a) Implicit bias training to identify strategies to reduce bias during assessment and diagnosis. The training may include at least one other topic listed in RCW 43.70.613 (3)(c).

(b) Trainers with demonstrated knowledge and experience related to health equity. Research referenced in the training must be based on current empirical research and known best practices.

(c) Courses that assess the health care professional's ability to apply health equity concepts into practice in accordance with profession specific rules, which may include, but are not limited to:

(i) An assessment at the end of an in-person or virtual continuing education training to determine knowledge gained during that training; or

(ii) A document provided at the end of an in-person or virtual continuing education training that attests attendance at the training.

(4) The health equity continuing education training must be completed by ~~((the end of the second full continuing education reporting period after January 1, 2024, or))~~ the second full continuing education reporting period after initial licensure or 2026 renewal, whichever is later.

~~((3))~~ (5) After the first required reporting period, this training must be completed within a 12-month period prior to license renewal. Additional hours cannot be rolled over to the following year.

~~((4))~~ The hours spent completing health equity continuing education under this section count toward meeting applicable continuing education requirements for nurse license renewal as described in WAC 246-840-220.)

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-11-032, filed 5/12/21, effective 6/12/21)

WAC 246-840-230 Continuing competency audit process and compliance. (1) ~~The ((commission))~~ board may conduct a compliance audit:

(a) Through random selection; and

(b) At the discretion of the ~~((commission))~~ board, on nurses under the disciplinary process.

(2) ~~The ((commission))~~ board will notify a nurse selected for compliance audit at the address on record with the department.

(3) The nurse (~~(must)~~) shall submit continuing education in clock hours.

(4) Failure to complete the required hours and provide the required documentation may be considered an aggravating factor per WAC 246-16-890 in any disciplinary action for a violation of RCW 18.130.180.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-11-032, filed 5/12/21, effective 6/12/21)

WAC 246-840-250 Continuing competency requirements—Reactivation from expired status. (1) All nurses applying for reactivation (~~(must)~~) from an expired license shall meet the requirements of WAC (~~(246-12-020 through 246-12-051)~~) 246-12-040 and 246-840-111.

(2) If a license (~~(is)~~) has been expired for more than one year, and the nurse has not held an active nursing license in any United States (U.S.) or Canadian jurisdiction, the nurse must complete (~~(ninety-six)~~) 96 hours of active nursing practice and eight hours of continuing nursing education within one year of reactivation.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending WSR 21-11-032, filed 5/12/21, effective 6/12/21)

WAC 246-840-260 Continuing competency requirements—Reactivation from inactive status. (1) All nurses applying for reactivation (~~(must)~~) of an inactive license shall meet the requirements of WAC (~~(246-12-090 through)~~) 246-12-100, 246-12-110 (~~(and)~~), or 246-840-120.

(2) If a license (~~(is)~~) has been inactive for more than one year, and the nurse has not held an active nursing license in any United States (U.S.) or Canadian jurisdiction, the nurse must complete (~~(ninety-six)~~) 96 hours of active nursing practice and eight hours of continuing nursing education within one year of reactivation.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 246-840-048 Students enrolled in a nontraditional nursing program.